6773

CC: D. Benda R. Busch Co. Clark

June 8, 1999

To The Honorable Chairman and Members of the Board of Commissioners

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We your Human Services Committee recommend the Board of Commissioners approve the attached tentative agreement reached by Midland County Probate Court/42nd Circuit Court-Family Division (Juvenile) and the County's negotiating team.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ronald L. Beech, Chairman

James 1. Dradley

Røland R. Weaver

Rose Marie Mc Quard

Rose Marie McQuaid

Human Services Committee

mam

ADOPTED

Midland County Board Of Commissioners

Date 6/8 1999

Attested: Karen a Holcomb

County Clerk and

Clerk of the Board of Commissioner

Midland County Infatulous/ Had Carins Court

6173

AGREEMENT by and between the
MIDLAND COUNTY PROBATE COURT/42ND Circuit Court-Family Division
and the
UNITED STEELWORKERS OF AMERICA,
AFL-CIO-CLC, and its Local Union No. 12075
(Non-Supervisory Unit)

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>P</u>	age
ARTICLE I	AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE II	RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE III	NON-DISCRIMINATION	2
ARTICLE IV	UNION SECURITY	2
ARTICLE V	EMPLOYER RIGHTS	5
ARTICLE VI	UNION REPRESENTATION	6
ARTICLE VII	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	6
ARTICLE VIII	STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	10
ARTICLE IX	SPECIAL CONFERENCES	11
ARTICLE X	PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES	11
ARTICLE XI	SENIORITY	12
ARTICLE XII	DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE	14
ARTICLE XIII	WORK RULES AND REGULATIONS	14
ARTICLE XIV	WORK BY SUPERVISORS AND OTHER NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEES	14
ARTICLE XV	JOB CLASSIFICATIONS	15
ARTICLE XVI	HOURS OF WORK	15
ARTICLE XVII	COMPENSATION	. 16
ARTICLE XVIII	LONGEVITY PAY	. 18
ARTICLE XIX	HOLIDAYS	. 19
ARTICLE XX	INSURANCE	20

ARTICLE XXI	RETIREMENT	24
ARTICLE XXII	PAID ANNUAL LEAVE DAYS	26
ARTICLE XXIII	UNPAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE	28
ARTICLE XXIV	OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE	30
ARTICLE XXV	MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS	33
ARTICLE XXVI	SCOPE OF AGREEMENT	34
ARTICLE XXVII	DURATION	35
APPENDIX A		37
ADDENIDIY B		38

ii.

# ARTICLE I AGREEMENT

This Agreement entered into this <u>8th</u> day of <u>June</u>, 1999, by and between the Midland County Probate Court/42nd Circuit Court-Family Division, (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer"), and the United Steelworkers of America, AFL-CIO-CLC, on behalf of its Local Union No. 12075, (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Union").

# ARTICLE II RECOGNITION

Section 1. The Probate Court/42nd Circuit Court-Family Division hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for the purposes of collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours, and other conditions of employment for all regular full-time and regular part-time non-supervisory employees of the Midland County Probate Court/42nd Circuit Court-Family Division employed in the Midland County Courthouse, the Midland County Services Building and the Midland County Juvenile Care Center, including Juvenile Probation Officers, Foster Home Coordinators, Deputy Probate Register/Judicial Clerk, Probate Register/Recorder, Cook, Senior Secretary/Deputy Probate Register, Juvenile Register/Recorder, Financial Officer, Secretary/Senior Secretary, Youth Development Workers, Maintenance, and Family Community Service Workers; but excluding the Probate Court/42nd Circuit Court-Family Division Judge, Family Division Director, Court Security Officers, Public Guardians, Midland County Juvenile Care Center Director, Midland County Juvenile Care Center Assistant Director, Probate Court Attorney/Referee, Caseworker Supervisors, Supervisors, Therapist, Temporaries, On-Call Employees, and Substitutes. This section is limited strictly to recognition of the Union as required by the provisions of the Michigan Public Employment Relations Act and shall not be interpreted or expanded in any manner or used for any other purpose.

Section 2. The Employer will not aid, promote or finance any labor group or organization which purports to engage in collective bargaining or make any agreement with any such group or organization for the purpose of undermining the Union.

Section 3. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall be defined as follows:

- (a) "Full-time Employee" shall mean a person who is regularly scheduled to work sixty-five (65) or more hours per bi-weekly pay period. This shall not constitute a guarantee of pay or work.
  - (b) "Part-Time Employee" shall mean a person who is regularly scheduled to work

less than sixty-five (65) hours per bi-weekly pay period. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, part-time employees shall not be entitled to leaves of absence, insurance benefits, retirement benefits, or other benefits provided under this Agreement.

- (c) "Temporary Employee" shall mean a person who is employed by the Employer for a period of six (6) consecutive months or less, unless replacing an employee who is on an approved leave of absence, in which event the temporary employee may be employed for the duration of the leave of absence or six (6) months, whichever is longer. A temporary employee is not subject to the terms of this Agreement.
  - (d) Unless otherwise indicated, the term "day(s)" means calendar day(s).
- (e) Pronouns of masculine and feminine gender in this Agreement shall include each other.

# ARTICLE III NON-DISCRIMINATION

Neither the Employer, the Union nor any employee covered by this Agreement shall discriminate against any employee covered by this Agreement based upon any factor prohibited by state or federal law.

# ARTICLE IV UNION SECURITY

Section 1. Membership in the Union is not compulsory. Employees have the right to join, not join, maintain or drop their membership in the Union as they see fit. Neither party shall assert any pressure on or discriminate against any employee in regard to such matters.

Section 2. However, it shall be a condition of employment that all employees of the Employer covered by this Agreement, and all employees who are hereafter hired, rehired, reinstated or transferred into the Bargaining Unit, shall tender the initiation fee and become members of the Union or shall pay a service fee in an amount not to exceed the regular monthly dues uniformly required for membership in the Union, on or before the completion of one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days employment for the Employer after the effective date of this Agreement or their date of employment, or transfer into the Bargaining Unit, whichever is later; and shall continue such membership or pay such service fees as a condition of continued employment.

Section 3. (a) Employees may have monthly membership dues or service fees deducted

from their earnings by signing an Authorization Form (agreed to by the Union and the Employer), or they may pay dues or fees directly to the Union.

- (b) During the life of this Agreement and in accordance with the terms of the Authorization Form and to the extent the laws of the State of Michigan permit, the Employer agrees to deduct the above-referenced Union membership dues or service fees from the pay of each employee who, as of the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding the month in which a deduction is to be made, has a currently executed Authorization Form on file with the Employer. The Union's International Secretary-Treasurer shall submit to the Employer's Payroll Office written certification of the amount of dues/service fees to be deducted pursuant to the provisions of this Article.
- (c) A properly executed copy of such Authorization Form for each employee for whom the Union membership dues or service fees are to be deducted hereunder shall be delivered by the Union to the Employer before any payroll deductions shall be made. Deductions shall be made thereafter only under the Authorization Forms which have been properly executed and are in effect. Any Authorization Form which is incomplete or in error will be returned to the Union's International Secretary-Treasurer by the Employer.
- (d) Check-off deductions under all properly executed Authorization Forms shall become effective at the time the application is tendered to the Employer and if received on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding the month in which a deduction is to be made, shall be deducted from the first (1st) pay of such month, and monthly thereafter.
- (e) In cases where a deduction is made that duplicates a payment that an employee already has made to the Union, or where a deduction is not in conformity with the provisions of this Agreement or applicable state or federal law, refunds to the employee will be made promptly by the Union.
- (f) All sums deducted by the Employer shall be remitted to the Union's International Secretary-Treasurer once each month within fifteen (15) calendar days following the payday in which deductions were made, together with a list which identifies current employees for whom Union dues or service fees have been deducted, the amount deducted from the pay of each employee and any employees who have terminated their Check-off Authorization during the previous month. Employees may terminate such Check-off at any time by serving written notice thereof to the Employer.
- (g) Once any funds are remitted to the Union by the Employer, their disposition shall be the sole and exclusive obligation and responsibility of the Union. In cases where a deduction is made that duplicates a payment that an employee already has made to the Union, or where a deduction is not in conformity with the provisions of the Constitution of the International Union or applicable state or federal law, refunds to the employee shall be made by the Union to the employee.

- (h) The Employer shall not be liable to the Union for the remittance or payment of any sum other than that constituting actual deductions made from wages earned by employees.
- Section 4. (a) An employee who fails to tender to the Union either Union dues or service fees as above provided, shall be terminated by the Employer, provided the following stipulations are adhered to:
- (1) The Union shall notify the employee by certified or registered mail explaining that he is delinquent in not tendering required Union dues or service fees, specifying the current amount of the delinquency and the period of delinquency, and warning the employee that unless delinquent dues or service fees are tendered within thirty (30) calendar days of such notice, the employee shall be reported to the Employer for termination as provided for in this Article.
- (2) The Union shall give a copy of the letter sent to the employee and the following written notice to the Employer at the end of the thirty (30) day period set forth in Section a above:

The Union certifies that (Name) has failed to tender either Union dues or service fees required as a condition of continued employment under the Collective Bargaining Agreement and demands that, under the terms of this Agreement, the Employer terminate this employee. A copy of such notice shall, at the same time, be given by the Union to the employee.

(b) Upon receipt of such notice, the Employer shall communicate the Union's request for termination to the employee and advise such employee that he must pay all back dues or service fees owed the Union, within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of such notice to the Employer (unless otherwise extended by the Union and the Employer), or he shall be terminated.

Section 5. The Employer assumes no obligation, financial or otherwise, arising out of any provision of this Article. Further, the Union hereby agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Employer from any and all claims, actions, demands, suits, proceedings, and other forms of liability, including all costs and attorney fees, that shall arise out of or by reason of any action taken or not taken by the Employer for the purpose of complying with this Article, including, but not limited to, the deduction of membership dues or service fees made by the Employer from the wages of any employee(s), its reliance on any list, notice or assignment furnished by the Union, or the termination of employment of any employee(s) pursuant to the provisions of this Article.

Section 6. Any dispute arising out of the application of this Article shall be subject to the Grievance Procedure, starting at Step III.

## ARTICLE V EMPLOYER RIGHTS

Except where specifically and expressly abridged or modified by this Agreement, all rights, powers, and authority of the Employer are hereby retained by the Employer, including, but not limited to, all rights, powers, and authority conferred by the Michigan and U. S. Constitution, state and federal statutes, the Michigan State Supreme Court, and all other administrative orders, rules and regulations. The Employer retains sole and exclusive control over any and all matters concerning the operation, management and administration of its business, the control of its properties, the maintenance or order and efficiency of the workforce, and complete authority to exercise those rights and powers incident thereto, including, by way of illustration but not by way of limitation, the exclusive right and authority: to determine the number of its facilities and the location and relocation of its operations and facilities; to consolidate or merge with any other entity; to decide to expand or close any of the Employer's operations or facilities; to determine the type and kind of services to be rendered and the work to be performed by employees covered by this Agreement; to determine all methods of rendering its services, including the prices to be charged therefor, and the exclusive right to approve all contracts for any of its services; to make all financial decisions, including the accounting, bookkeeping and all other record keeping methods and procedures, to determine the organizational and business entity structure of its facilities; to determine whether to transfer, lease, subcontract or discontinue work or the entire business operation or any part thereof; to determine whether to purchase any materials, goods or services from other persons or entities; to determine the necessity for and how to perform work by employees or by other persons or entities; to determine the amount and type of supervision that is necessary; to determine service standards, the materials and equipment to be utilized by and located at the Employer, including the right to add, modify or remove the same whenever it determines; to determine the method and means of providing its services, the schedules of work and hours of operation, the services to be contracted out or purchased; and to have any work performed at any location.

Except where specifically and expressly abridged or modified by this Agreement, it is further expressly recognized and agreed that the Employer retains sole and exclusive control over all matters pertaining to the selection, direction, instruction and control of employees, including, but not limited to, the right to select, hire, assign, layoff, reclassify, upgrade, downgrade, promote, or transfer employees; to determine the number of employees to be hired, employed and working; to discipline, suspend or discharge seniority employees for just cause; to select, promote or transfer employees to supervisory, managerial, or other positions outside the bargaining unit; to adopt and enforce reasonable rules and regulations, including rules and regulations covering smoking by employees and other health and safety matters; to determine the number of and qualifications of employees to perform work (including physical qualifications which may be determined by examination or testing, including drug and alcohol testing); to determine quality, quantity and performance standards; to determine the allocation and assignment of work to employees, it being expressly understood and agreed to by the Employer and the Union that the nature of the Employer's operations requires employees to be used

interchangeably in various positions and that any employee may be assigned duties in other areas of work as needed; to determine job content, create new job classifications and revise existing job classifications; to assign work and overtime, determine the hours of work, the schedules of employees, the starting times, break times and quitting times of employees; to determine the number of hours to be worked and the business hours of its facilities; to determine the amount of overtime to be worked, to relieve employees from duty because of lack of work or for other reasons; and to perform all other functions inherent in the administration, management, control and/or direction of its operations.

## ARTICLE VI UNION REPRESENTATION

Section 1. The Union will select three employees from the bargaining unit to serve as unit grievers under this Agreement.

Section 2. In contract negotiations the Union may be represented by a Bargaining Committee comprised of three (3) employees from the bargaining unit. Employees so designated shall be compensated for time spent in negotiations with the Employer during their regular work hours. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require that collective bargaining be done between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.

Section 3. The Union shall certify in writing to the Employer the names of the employees who are selected to serve as unit grievers and on the Union's Bargaining Committee.

Section 4. The Union agrees to conduct its business off the job, provided, however, this Section shall not be construed so as to prevent a Union representative from fulfilling his responsibilities as provided in the grievance procedure, nor shall it be construed to prevent the posting of Union notices and bulletins on Employer provided bulletin boards in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 5. Union business agents or representatives having business with the employees may confer with such employees during lunch or break periods or, when absolutely necessary and approved in advance by the Employer, during hours of work, provided always that such discussions not take place in the presence of other members of the public.

# ARTICLE VII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1. Statement of Purpose. The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the

lowest level possible, equitable solutions to employee grievances. The parties intend that the grievance procedure shall serve as a means for the peaceful settlement of disputes, without any interruption or disturbance of the normal operation of the Employer. Grievances are limited to matters of interpretation of application of the express provisions of this Agreement. Recognizing that an orderly grievance procedure is necessary, it is agreed that each step must be adhered to as set forth herein. Any grievance that is filed shall refer to the provision of the Agreement alleged to have been violated, shall set forth the facts pertaining to the alleged violation, shall state the settlement or correction requested, and shall be dated and signed by each grievant. Employee grievances arising under and during the term of this Agreement shall be handled in the following manner:

### Step One

An employee, unit griever, or the employee and unit griever who has a grievance shall orally discuss it with the employee's immediate supervisor (or designee) within five (5) work days of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. (If the employee's immediate supervisor is the Court's Judge, the employee, unit griever, or the employee and unit griever shall file his grievance in writing at Step Three of this grievance procedure.) At the employee's request, the unit griever may also attend the meeting. The employee's immediate supervisor (or designee) shall give his answer orally to the employee and/or unit griever within five (5) work days of the discussion with the employee and/or unit griever.

# Step Two

If the grievance is not resolved at Step One, the employee and/or unit griever shall reduce the grievance to writing, and present it to the employee's immediate supervisor (or designee) within fifteen (15) work days of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. The employee's Supervisor (or designee) shall, within five (5) work days after receipt of the written grievance, meet with the grievant and a union griever. The employee's Supervisor (or designee) shall render his/her written disposition of the grievance within five (5) work days after the meeting.

# Step Three

If the grievance is not resolved at Step Two, the unit griever and/or employee shall, within five (5) work days of receipt of the Supervisor's written disposition at Step Two, take the matter up with the Director of the Family Division, or Director of the Juvenile Care Center, or his/her designated representative, who shall within five (5) work days of receipt of the written grievance, meet with the unit griever and/or the grievant and the Union's International Staff Representative. The Employer and the Union may, at their discretion, also have additional representatives attend the meeting. The Director of the Family Division, or Director of the Juvenile Care Center, or his/her designated representative shall render his/her written disposition of the grievance within five (5) work days after the above meeting.

### Step Four

If the grievance is not resolved at Step Three, the Union shall, within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the Director of the Family Division's, or Director of the Juvenile Care Center's answer at Step Three, submit the matter to the Michigan Employment Relations Commission for mediation. All discussions and proposals under consideration in mediation shall be construed as private "settlement" discussions and shall not be subject to disclosure beyond Step Four.

### Step Five

If the grievance is not resolved at Step Four, the Union shall, within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of the Director of the Family Division's, or Director of the Juvenile Care Center's answer at Step Three, notify the Employer in writing of its intent to submit the grievance to final and binding arbitration before an arbitrator to be appointed by mutual agreement of the parties hereto. If the parties cannot agree as to the arbitrator within seventy (70) calendar days of the Union's receipt of the Director of the Family Division's, or Director of the Juvenile Care Center's Step Three answer, the Union may file a Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association no later than ninety (90) calendar days after the Union's receipt of the Director of the Family Division's, or Director of the Juvenile Care Center's Step Three answer. Concurrent notification of such appeal shall be provided to the Employer. Notification to the Employer shall be subject to the same time limits set forth for filing with the American Arbitration Association and shall include a copy of the Union's Demand for Arbitration and identification of the grievance, the issue(s) and the provisions of the Agreement involved. If the grievance is not submitted to Arbitration in accordance with the procedure and time limits herein provided, the Employer's Step Three disposition of the Grievance shall be final.

Except as above provided, selection of the arbitrator and the arbitration hearing shall be governed by the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall have authority to issue a subpoena for a witness to attend the arbitration hearing. Grievances shall be arbitrated separately unless otherwise agreed in writing between the Employer and the Union.

The fees and approved expenses of the Arbitrator and the cost of any room or other facility needed for the arbitration shall be borne equally by the Union and the Employer. All other expenses, including, but not limited to, the cost of compensating its own representatives and witnesses, shall be borne by the party incurring them. All hearings shall be held at a mutually agreeable site. Employee witnesses, except the grievant, who are scheduled to work on the day of an arbitration hearing, shall be excused from work only to testify and shall return to work immediately thereafter. The grievant shall be excused from work to attend the entire arbitration hearing and shall return to work immediately thereafter.

The arbitrator shall have authority to hear and determine any grievance involving the application or interpretation of the express terms or conditions of this Agreement, provided the

grievance has been timely processed through the Grievance Procedure and is properly before him. In fulfilling his duties under this Agreement, the arbitrator shall have authority to apply and interpret the express terms or conditions of this Agreement, but shall not have the authority to add to, subtract from, or modify this Agreement or resolve any dispute under any section of this Agreement which is expressly excluded from Arbitration, or imply a provision which is not otherwise specifically provided herein. If the arbitrator issues his decision within his jurisdiction, said decision shall be final and binding on the employee(s), the Union, and the Employer.

If either party shall claim before the arbitrator that a particular grievance is not arbitrable, the arbitrator shall decide such issues before proceeding to hear the case upon its merits. In any case, where the arbitrator determines that such grievance is not arbitrable they shall refer the case back to the parties without a recommendation on the merits.

The retroactive effect of any claim filed under the grievance procedure shall be limited to the date of the presentation of the grievance at Step One of the Grievance Procedure. No claim for back wages shall exceed the amount of wages the employee would otherwise have earned at his base rate under this Agreement, less any unemployment or other compensation he may have received from any source of employment during the period in question.

Grievances processed to arbitration may be withdrawn only on written agreement of the Employer and Union.

Section 2. Grievance Settlements. Any and all grievances that are forfeited or resolved at any step of the grievance procedure shall be final and binding on the Employer, the Union, and any and all employees involved in the particular grievance. The resolution of a grievance at Steps 1 and 2 shall not add to, subtract from or modify the terms of this Agreement, unless done so in writing and approved by the Employer and the Union.

Section 3. <u>Time Limitations</u>. The time limits established in this grievance procedure are of the essence and shall be followed by the parties. If an employee fails to file a grievance in the allowed time, the grievance will be barred. If an employee or the Union fails to advance a grievance to the next step in a timely manner, it shall be considered resolved on the basis of the Employer's last disposition. If the time procedures are not followed by the Employer, the grievance shall automatically advance to the next step. The time limits established in the grievance procedure may be extended by mutual agreement, provided the extension request is reduced to writing and a period of extension is specified.

<u>Section 4. Entering or Advancing A Grievance Out of Order</u>. With the consent of both parties, grievances may be commenced at any stage of the grievance procedure or may be advanced and processed out of order.

Section 5. Work Day Defined. For purposes of this Article, a work day is a day other than Saturday, Sunday or a holiday recognized by this Agreement.

# ARTICLE VIII STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

Section 1. During the life of this Agreement, the Union, its officers and employees, shall not cause, authorize, or condone, nor shall any member of the bargaining unit cause, authorize, condone or take part in, any picketing or demonstration on any of the Employer's premises, on any property adjacent thereto, or on any property on which an Employer facility is located or where the Employer performs or delivers its services, nor shall they cause, authorize or condone any strike (including a sympathy strike), work stoppage, interruption, sickout, sitdown, stay-in, slowdown, or any other restriction of work or interference with the operations of the Employer.

Section 2. In the event of any conduct prohibited in Section 1 above, the Employer shall not be required to negotiate on the merits of the dispute which gave rise to the action until such conduct has ceased.

Section 3. In the event of any conduct prohibited in Section 1 above, the Employer agrees that such violation of this Agreement shall not cause the Union, its officers, agents and employees to be liable for damages, provided the Union, its officers, agents and employees, a) immediately instruct the involved employees in writing that their conduct is in violation of the Agreement and that they may be discharged, b) directs such employee or group of employees to immediately resume normal work activity and cease the offending conduct, and c) otherwise take all effective means to terminate the unauthorized conduct by employees.

Section 4. In the event an individual employee or group of employees engages in any of the prohibited activities set forth in Section 1 above, the Employer shall have the right, at its discretion, to discipline or discharge such employee or group of employees. However, it is understood and agreed that if there is a dispute as to whether an employee has engaged in the prohibited activities set forth in Section 1 above, the employee or employees may process a grievance limited to the issue of whether they engaged in the prohibited activity, starting at Step Three of the Grievance Procedure. Such grievances shall be filed with the Employer within three (3) work days after such discipline or discharge, except in extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the employee, in which event the employee must file a grievance as soon as he is physically able to do so. The grievance procedure set forth herein provides the sole and exclusive remedy for the settlement of employee grievances.

Section 5. The Employer agrees that it will not lockout any employee during the term of this Agreement. However, if any employee is unable to work because equipment, facilities, labor or other resources are not available due to a strike, work stoppage, slowdown or other interference by the Employer's employees prohibited under Section 1 above, or because of the actions of employees of another employer, such inability to work shall not be declared a lockout.

# ARTICLE IX SPECIAL CONFERENCES

- Section 1. Special Conferences may be held for the purpose of considering matters of mutual interest, other than grievances under consideration in the Grievance Procedure. Such conferences shall be subject to mutual agreement of the Employer and the Union and shall be scheduled and held in a timely manner.
- Section 2. Arrangements for such conferences shall be made in advance and an agenda of the specific matters to be taken up at the meeting shall be presented prior to the conference including a time limit placed upon the length of each meeting.
- Section 3. Actions taken pursuant to Special Conferences shall in no way change or alter any of the provisions of the parties' Collective Bargaining Agreement or the rights of either the Employer or the Union under the terms of this Agreement.
- Section 4. Further, any matter or action discussed by the parties in Special Conferences shall not be deemed binding unless expressly set forth in writing through a Memorandum of Understanding that is signed by the Union and the Employer.

# ARTICLE X PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES

- Section 1. A new employee in the bargaining unit shall be considered a probationary employee for the first one hundred eighty (180) calendar days of his employment since his last date of continuous hire or entry into the bargaining unit. After an employee has satisfactorily completed his probationary period, he shall be entered on the seniority list and credited with seniority from his last date of continuous hire.
- Section 2. The decision to discipline, discharge, and/or decide whether or not an employee successfully completes his probationary period shall vest exclusively in the Employer and shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures of this agreement.
- Section 3. The Employer shall have no responsibility for the re-employment of a probationary employee if he is laid off or discharged during the one hundred eighty (180) calendar day probationary period.

# ARTICLE XI SENIORITY

Section 1. Seniority shall be defined as a regular full-time or regular part-time employee's length of continuous service with the Employer since his last day of hire. If two or more employees are hired on the same date, the employee with the highest social security number shall have the higher seniority. The part-time employee's length of continuous service shall be prorated based upon the hours the employee actually works or receives straight time pay. (For the purpose of this provision, 173 paid straight time hours shall constitute one (1) month.)

Section 2. An employee shall lose seniority and his employment shall be terminated for any of the following reasons:

- (a) The employee quits.
- (b) The employee is discharged for cause and is not reinstated through the Grievance Procedure.
- (c) The employee has been on layoff for the length of his seniority or three (3) years, whichever is shorter.
- (d) The employee does not report for work from a layoff within five (5) working days after being notified by the Employer at the last address shown in the Employer's record by certified mail, with a copy to the Union's Unit Chairperson.
- (e) The employee fails to report to work on the first day following expiration of a leave of absence, unless the employee's failure to report was the result of an emergency, in which event the employee must report as soon as he is physically able to do so.
- (f) The employee is employed elsewhere during a leave without approval of the Employer.
- (g) An employee is absent for two (2) consecutive working days without notifying the Employer, unless the employee's failure to provide such notice was due to an incapacitating condition in which event the employee must provide such notice as soon as he is physically able to do so.
- (h) An employee is on a medical or disability leave of absence for more than two and one-half (2½) years. If an employee goes on a leave of absence within ninety (90) days after his return from a previous leave of absence, he shall be deemed to be continuing the original leave of absence.
  - (i) An employee is on workers' compensation for more than three (3) years.

Section 3. Where possible, the Employer will endeavor to provide employees with seven (7) days advance written notice of layoff. In the event of layoff, the first employees to be laid off within each bargaining unit classification shall be on-call employees, temporary employees, and then probationary employees. Thereafter, the next to be laid off in the affected classification shall be those employees with the least amount of seniority, provided, however, the senior employees being retained have the necessary training, experience, qualifications, skill, and ability to perform the required work efficiently.

Section 4. Full-time and regular part-time employees to be recalled from layoff shall be recalled within their respective classifications on the basis of seniority, most senior first, provided they are qualified in all respects to perform the available work. The Employer agrees to discuss any recall not based on seniority with the Union. The Employer shall notify employees to be recalled by certified mail at the employee's last known address.

Section 5. Employees who are laid off or displaced will be allowed to bump into another job in an equal or lower pay grade for which they have the seniority and the qualifications. The qualifications are defined as the necessary training, experience, skill and ability to perform the required work efficiently.

Section 6. The Employer shall supply all laid off employees with a list of positions that they could bump into. The Employer also agrees to notify all laid off employees of any new job openings for which they qualify.

Section 7. The Employer will post a notice of job vacancy on the bulletin board giving all employees an opportunity to make application for the job by filing the appropriate application forms. All employees who are on sick, or workers' compensation, or other form of leave at the time of posting shall be eligible to apply. Such notice shall be posted for a period of at least seven (7) working days. The job posting notice will show the classification and rate of a job vacancy. During the bidding period, the Employer may make a temporary assignment to fill the posted vacancy. An employee bidding into a change of classification may be given up to thirty (30) days to demonstrate he is able to satisfactorily perform the job. If such employee fails to satisfactorily perform the job within said period, or wishes to withdraw from said job, he shall be returned to the previous or an equal vacant position without loss of seniority.

Section 8. The Union will be notified of any testing procedures used by the Employer in filling job postings.

Section 9. Shift transfers - in the event that a shift or schedule change becomes available, the Employer shall post on Union bulletin board for seven (7) days and provide an opportunity for all bargaining unit members to submit a letter of interest. All such transfers shall be based on seniority, qualifications, and ability to perform the duties of the job. An employee who is granted a shift transfer shall not be awarded more than two shift transfers in a three-year period unless mutually agreed to by both parties.

# ARTICLE XII DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

Section 1. Just Cause. Seniority employees will be disciplined only for just cause.

- Section 2. Union Representation. If an employee requests the presence of a unit griever during an investigation of misconduct which the employee reasonably believes may result in that employee being disciplined, the Employer shall hold in abeyance further questioning of the employee until the unit griever is present.
- Section 3. Examination of Personnel File. Employees may examine and copy their own individual personnel files at reasonable times. The County may assess a reasonable charge for this service.
- Section 4. Grievances Protesting A Suspension. Grievances relating to the suspension of an employee shall be initiated by the Union at the third step of the grievance procedure within ten (10) work days of the employee's suspension.
- Section 5. Grievances Protesting a Discharge. Grievances relating to the discharge of an employee shall be initiated by the Union at the third step of the grievance procedures within ten (10) work days of the employee's discharge.

# ARTICLE XIII WORK RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Employer shall have the right to make, modify (including the elimination of same) and enforce reasonable rules and regulations relating to employee conduct. Such rules shall be observed by all employees. Employees who fail to abide by the Employer's rules and regulations shall be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

# ARTICLE XIV WORK BY SUPERVISORS AND OTHER NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEES

Supervisors and other non-bargaining unit employees shall be permitted to perform bargaining unit work without restriction. By way of illustration but not by way of limitation, such persons may perform bargaining unit work:

(a) to perform necessary work when difficulties are encountered on the job.

- (b) to fill-in where regular employees in any classification and/or any given shift do not report for work or are not available.
  - (c) to instruct or train employees.
  - (d) to do experimental work on a new job.
  - (e) to supplement or augment the workforce.

# ARTICLE XV JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

Section 1. The jobs covered by this Agreement have been categorized according to qualifications required, and the degree of responsibility, complexity, effort and skill of the duties associated with the jobs. The Employer and the Union agree upon and accept the job classifications in effect at the time of ratification of this Agreement as the basis for payment of wages as provided herein.

Section 2. In the event the Employer creates a new job classification or changes an existing job classification in the Bargaining Unit, the Employer shall notify the Union of the new or revised job and its pay rate. If requested within ten (10) working days after such notification, the Employer shall meet with the Union to discuss the pay rate of the new or revised job classification. If, following such a discussion, there is a dispute as to the pay rate for the new or revised job classification, such dispute shall be an appropriate matter for a grievance initiated at the Third Step of the Grievance Procedure. If the grievance is referred to an Arbitrator he shall use as the basis for his decision, the complexity, responsibility, effort and skill of the new or revised job as compared to other jobs in the Bargaining Unit.

Section 3. A bargaining unit member who wishes to apply for a vacant position, if rejected by the incumbent(s), shall do so in accordance with Article XI, Section 7.

## ARTICLE XVI HOURS OF WORK

<u>Section 1</u>. <u>Workweek Defined</u>. For the purposes of computing the pay of employees, the workweek shall consist of seven (7) calendar days commencing at 12:01 a.m. on Saturday and ending the following Friday at 12:00 midnight. The Employer shall determine each employee's hours of work and work schedule.

### Section 2. Overtime.

- (a) Employees shall receive overtime compensation or compensatory time off in accordance with applicable state and federal law. If an employee is required to work over eight (8) hours in a workday, the Employer may, at its discretion, give the employee compensatory time off within the applicable workweek on an hour-for-hour basis for the purpose of avoiding working the employee in excess of forty (40) hours in the workweek.
  - (b) There shall be no duplication or pyramiding of overtime pay.
- (c) The Employer reserves the right to fill vacancies by using part-time and on-call employees; however, in the event that overtime becomes necessary, a rotational overtime call-in list shall be established utilizing those regular full-time employees with the lowest number of overtime hours.
- Section 3. An employee called in for extra work during unscheduled hours in the normal work day shall be allowed to work at least two (2) hours at the employee's discretion and paid at the applicable rate. Staff meetings and/or training, call-ins less than two (2) hours before the start of the employee's regular shift, or the extension of less than two (2) hours after the end of the employee's regular shift are not included for purposes of this section.

# ARTICLE XVII COMPENSATION

<u>Section 1</u>. <u>Pay Periods</u>. Employees will be paid every other Friday. One week of wages is withheld to provide the necessary time to prepare the payroll. Payment shall be made by check or through direct deposit. The employee shall also be provided an itemized statement of his earnings and all deductions made for any purpose.

### Section 2.

- (a) All employees in the bargaining unit as of the date of the signing of this Agreement by both parties, who were on the Employer's active payroll in calendar year 1998, shall receive a one-time lump-sum payment (not to be added to base pay) equal to 2% of their 1998 straight-time W-2 earnings, exclusive of overtime, shift differentials, and all other supplemental payments.
- Section 3. Base Wages. All employees shall be compensated at the rate specified for their pay grade and classification as provided for in Appendix B of this Agreement. New hires shall commence at the Start Rate specified for their respective job classifications and pay grade.

Upon completion of one year's service at the Start Rate in that salary grade, the employee shall advance to the next step, if his performance has been satisfactory or above during the preceding period. Employees shall thereafter advance to each successive step of the salary schedule after completing the period of service indicated for each such step until they reach the maximum step of their pay grade, provided their performance is rated satisfactory or above by the Employer.

# Section 4. Pay Adjustments for Promotions and Transfers to Regular Position Vacancies.

- (a) If an employee is promoted to a classification in a higher pay grade, his base salary shall be increased to the rate specified for that step of the new classification which will result in an annual base salary increase of at least \$250.00 above the base salary he was last paid in his former position.
- (b) If an employee transfers to a classification in the same pay grade, his base pay shall remain the same.
- (c) If an employee transfers to a classification in a lower pay grade, he shall be placed at the same step on the salary schedule in such lower graded position as the step on which he was placed at the time of his transfer and his base rate reduced accordingly.
- (d) An employee who is temporarily assigned to a position in a higher pay grade for a period of four (4) consecutive hours or longer shall, for the duration of such temporary assignment, receive the rate of pay for the lowest step within the new grade which assumes a \$250 annualized increase.
- <u>Section 5</u>. <u>Transfers From Full-Time to Part-Time Status</u>. A full-time employee who transfers from full-time to part-time status shall forfeit all eligibility for insurance benefits and all other fringe benefits not payable to part-time employees, effective with the date of said transfer.
- Section 6. Transfers from Part-Time to Full-Time Status. An employee who transfers from part-time to full-time status shall have his hours worked as a part-time employee equated to full-time service for purposes of placing him on the appropriate step of the salary schedule and determining the date on which his insurance benefits will commence. All other fringe benefits shall commence effective with the date of the employee's transfer to full-time status. For purposes of equating part-time to full-time service, eight (8) hours worked shall constitute one (1) workday and 2,080 straight-time hours worked shall constitute one (1) year of full-time service.
- Section 7. Wage Shortages. If there is a shortage in an employee's pay, it shall be corrected in the next paycheck provided the employee reports the error on or before Thursday of the week preceding the week in which the paycheck is to be issued. Errors reported after said Thursday will be corrected in the next succeeding paycheck.

<u>Section 8</u>. <u>Wage Overpayments</u>. Wage overpayments shall be subject to collection by the Employer in accordance with the provisions of law, including involuntary withholdings from an employee's pay.

Section 9. Shift Premium. Employees working the midnight shift shall receive a \$.50 per hour shift premium over and above their regular pay.

Section 10. Pager Premium. Regular full-time Family Community Service Workers, who are required to carry a pager after their regular work hours, shall receive forty (40) hours of leave time annually which shall be credited on January 1 of each subsequent year.

# ARTICLE XVIII LONGEVITY PAY

Section 1. Employees who were hired on or after November 2, 1993, shall not be eligible for longevity pay. All regular full-time employees who were hired on or before November 1, 1993, and who have completed five (5), ten (10), fifteen (15), or twenty (20) years of continuous non-interrupted service with the County, shall receive annual longevity payments based on the following schedule:

Upon completion of five (5) years of continuous service, 1% of their annual base salary.

Upon completion of ten (10) years of continuous service, 3% of their annual base salary.

Upon completion of fifteen (15) years of continuous service, 5% of their annual base salary.

Upon completion of twenty (20) years of continuous service, 7% of their annual base salary.

Section 2. Annual base salary shall mean the employee's base salary that is in effect on the last payroll period preceding the employee's anniversary of employment.

Section 3. Longevity payments earned by full-time employees shall be paid on the first pay period following the employee anniversary of hire date and shall be taxed in accordance with current Internal Revenue Service guidelines governing supplemental wage withholding.

<u>Section 4.</u> Employees who leave employment by reason of resignation, retirement, death of an employee, layoff, disability, or any other reason, prior to their anniversary of hire date, shall not receive pro-rated longevity payments.

Section 5. Employees whose jobs are eliminated because of automation, or for any other reason, prior to their anniversary of hire date, shall not receive pro-rated longevity payments.

# ARTICLE XIX HOLIDAYS

Section 1. The Employer recognizes the following paid holidays:

- New Year's Day
- Martin Luther King Day
- President's Day
- Good Friday
- Memorial Day
- Independence Day
- Labor Day
- Veteran's Day
- Thanksgiving Day
- Friday after Thanksgiving
- December 24, Christmas Eve Day
- Christmas Day
- New Year's Eve Day

Whenever a holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as a holiday. Whenever a holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as a holiday.

Section 2. The holiday period shall extend from 6:00 a.m. the day of the holiday until 6:00 a.m. the next day.

Section 3. Regular full-time employees shall receive eight (8) hours of straight time pay as holiday pay for designated holidays.

Section 4. Regular part-time employees shall receive holiday pay only when the holiday falls on one of their regularly scheduled work days and only for their regularly scheduled work hours.

Section 5. Employees shall receive time and one-half in addition to holiday pay for working a designated holiday.

Section 6. Regular full-time shift employees who work the holiday will have the option of receiving eight hours leave in lieu of holiday pay to be banked for future use.

# ARTICLE XX INSURANCE

### Section 1. Hospitalization.

- (a) The Employer agrees to provide Blue Cross-Blue Shield Plan (MVF-1), ML, FAERC, APDBP, PD \$5.00 Generic and \$10.00 Brand Name Prescription Drug Rider, and vision coverage Group Benefit Certificate A-80 -- family continuation, sponsored dependent, Master Medical Option I, or generally equivalent coverage, to each regular, full-time seniority employee and his eligible dependents, subject to such terms, conditions, exclusions, limitations, deductibles, co-payments and other provisions of the applicable policies and insurance plans in effect as of said date. Coverage shall commence on the first day of the month following the employee's thirtieth (30th) day of continuous employment.
- (b) The employee shall make premium contributions in the amount of 4.5% of the actual premium cost of said coverage. Said premium contributions shall be made monthly by payroll deduction.
- (c) To qualify for the medical benefits as above described, each employee must individually enroll and make proper application for such benefits at the Employer's designated Personnel Office within thirty (30) calendar days of the commencement of his regular employment with the Employer. An employee who fails to complete, sign and return the required application forms is specifically and expressly excluded from such benefits plan until such time as he enrolls and makes proper application during an open enrollment period, unless the employee presents verifiable proof of having lost alternate coverage through another source. Subject to carrier approval, employees who have lost medical coverage through another source shall be permitted to immediately enroll in the Employer's medical plan.
- (d) Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, when on an authorized unpaid leave of absence the employee will be responsible for his benefit costs for the period he is not on the active payroll. Employees electing to continue such benefits shall pay the full cost of such continued benefits. Proper application and arrangements for the payment of such continued benefits must be made at the Employer's designated Personnel Office prior to the commencement of the leave. If such application and arrangements are not made as herein described, an employee's group medical benefits shall automatically terminate on the last day of the current month after the effective date of the unpaid leave of absence.
- (e) Except as otherwise provided under COBRA or this Agreement, an employee's group medical benefits coverage shall terminate on the date the employee goes on leave of absence, terminates, retires, the group medical benefits plan terminates, or on the 30th day following the date that the employee is laid off. Upon return from a leave of absence or layoff, an employee's group medical benefits coverage shall be reinstated commencing with the billing month following such return.

- (f) An employee who is on layoff or leave of absence or who terminates may elect under COBRA to continue at his own expense the coverage herein provided.
- (g) The Employer reserves the right to change the carrier and/or the manner in which it provides the above coverage, provided that the benefits are generally equivalent to or better than the benefits outlined above.
- (h) To be eligible for health insurance coverage as provided above, an employee must document all coverage available to him under his spouse's medical plan and cooperate in the coordination of coverage to limit the Employer's expense.
- (i) The Employer's responsibility to pay for any of the foregoing group medical benefits shall terminate as of the expiration date of this Agreement.
- (j) Employees shall have the opportunity to join an HMO or PPO with the provision that if an employee chooses the HMO or PPO, the 4.5% employee premium contribution will be waived. If the premium for the HMO or PPO should ever exceed the premium for the traditional plan this section shall not apply. The employee may continue in the HMO or PPO by paying the difference.
- (k) Employees who elect to opt out of the health insurance plan shall receive payments of \$100.00 per month if they can provide evidence of health insurance elsewhere.

### Section 2. Dental Insurance.

- (a) The Employer agrees to continue to provide each regular, full-time seniority employee, and his eligible dependents with Blue Cross-Blue Shield CR25 50/50 dental care insurance benefits.
- (b) The dental care benefits set forth above shall commence on the first day of the month following the employee's thirtieth (30th) day of continuous employment, subject to the terms, conditions, exclusions, limitations, deductibles, co-payments and other provisions pertaining to coverage are as stated in the Employer's policies or in its insurance policy.
- (c) To qualify for the group dental care benefits as above described, each employee must individually enroll and make proper application for such benefits at the Employer's designated Personnel Office within thirty (30) calendar days of the commencement of his regular employment with the Employer. An employee who fails to complete, sign and return the required application forms is specifically and expressly excluded from participating in such benefits plan until such time as he enrolls and makes proper application during an open enrollment period.

- (d) Except as otherwise provided under COBRA or this Agreement, an employee's dental care benefits coverage shall terminate on the date the employee is laid off, goes on leave of absence, terminates, retires or the dental care benefits coverage terminates. Upon return from a leave of absence or layoff, an employee's dental care benefits coverage shall be reinstated commencing with the billing month following such return.
- (e) An employee who is on layoff or leave of absence or who terminates may elect under COBRA to continue at his own expense the coverage herein provided.
- (f) The Employer reserves the right to change the carrier and/or the manner in which it provides the above coverage, provided that the benefits are generally equivalent to or better than the benefits outlined above.
- (g) The Employer's responsibility to pay for any of the foregoing dental care benefits shall terminate as of the expiration date of this Agreement.

### Section 3. Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance.

- (a) The Employer will continue to provide the Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance benefits presently in effect for all regular, full-time seniority employees covered by this Agreement in the amount of \$1,000 Term Life Insurance and \$1,000 Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance for each \$1,000 of the employee's wage, rounded to the nearest \$1,000 increment. In any event, the minimum coverage shall be \$15,000 and the maximum coverage shall be \$50,000.
- (b) Coverage shall commence on the first day of the month following the employee's thirtieth (30th) day of continuous employment.
- (c) The foregoing description of benefits represents only an outline of the coverage provided. The terms, conditions, exclusions, limitations, deductibles and other provisions of coverage are as stated in the Employer's policies or in its insurance policy.
- (d) To qualify for the group term life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance benefits as above described, each employee must individually enroll and make proper application for such benefits at the Employer's designated Personnel Office within thirty (30) calendar days of the commencement of his regular employment with the Employer. An employee who fails to complete, sign and return the required application forms is specifically and expressly excluded from such benefits coverage. An employee who declines coverage shall be required to execute a waiver of coverage.
- (e) The Employer shall pay the cost of maintaining the above coverage for the period that the employee is on the active payroll. When on an authorized unpaid leave of absence the employee will be responsible for his benefit costs for the period he is not on the active payroll.

Employees electing to continue such benefits shall pay the full cost of such continued benefits. Proper application and arrangements for the payment of such continued benefits must be made at the Employer's designated Personnel Office prior to the commencement of the leave. If such application and arrangements are not made as herein described, an employee's group term life and accidental death and dismemberment benefits shall automatically terminate upon the effective date of the unpaid leave of absence.

- (f) An employee's group term life and accidental death and dismemberment benefits plan shall terminate on the date the employee terminates, retires, the group term life and accidental death and dismemberment benefits plan terminates, or on the 30th day following the end of the month that the employee is laid off. Upon return from a leave of absence or layoff, an employee's group term life and accidental death and dismemberment benefits plan shall be reinstated commencing with the billing month following such return.
- (g) The Employer reserves the right to change the carrier and/or the manner in which it provides the above coverage, provided that the benefits are generally equivalent to or better than the benefits outlined above.
- (h) The Employer's responsibility to pay for any of the foregoing group term life and accidental death and dismemberment benefits shall terminate as of the expiration date of this Agreement.

### Section 4. Short-Term and Long-Term Disability Benefits.

(a) The Employer shall continue to provide the following short-term and long-term disability benefits to regular, full-time seniority employees:

### Short-term Disability Plan

- Waiting Period 7 calendar days
- Percentage of Pay 66-2/3% of gross pay
- Maximum Monthly Benefit Amount \$3,000.00 per month
- Maximum Period of Benefits 6 months

### Long-Term Disability Plan

- Waiting Period 6 months
- Percentage of Pay 66-2/3% of gross pay
- Maximum Monthly Benefit Amount \$3,000.00 per month
- Maximum Period of Benefits 2 years
- (b) The foregoing provisions represent only an outline of the coverage provided. The

terms, conditions, exclusions, limitations, deductibles and other provisions of coverage are as stated in the Employer's policies or in its insurance policy.

- (c) The Employer shall pay the cost of maintaining the above coverage for the period that the employee is on the active payroll. When on an authorized unpaid leave of absence the employee will be responsible for his benefit costs for the period he is not on the active payroll. Employees electing to continue such benefits shall pay the full cost of such continued benefits. Proper application and arrangements for the payment of such continued benefits must be made at the Employer's designated Personnel Office prior to the commencement of the leave. If such application and arrangements are not made as herein described, an employee's short term disability benefits shall automatically terminate upon the effective date of the unpaid leave of absence.
- (d) An employee's short term disability benefits plan shall terminate on the date the employee is laid off, goes on leave of absence, terminates, retires, or the short term disability benefits plan terminates. Upon return from a leave of absence or layoff, an employee's short term and long-term disability benefits plan shall be reinstated commencing with the billing month following such return.
- (e) The Employer reserves the right to change the carrier and/or the manner in which it provides the above coverage, provided that the benefits are generally equivalent to or better than the benefits outlined above.
- (f) The Employer's responsibility to pay for any of the foregoing short term disability benefits shall terminate as of the expiration date of this Agreement.

<u>Section 5.</u> <u>Workers' Compensation.</u> The Employer shall provide Workers' Compensation protection for all employees.

# ARTICLE XXI RETIREMENT

Section 1. Normal Retirement. All regular full-time employees shall continue to be covered under the Midland County Employees' Retirement System, subject to such terms and conditions in effect on the date this Agreement takes full force and effect. The multiplier for members of the bargaining unit shall be two percent (2%).

An employee shall become eligible for <u>full</u> retirement benefits upon accumulation of eighty-five (85) "points" (age plus years of service).

Section 2. Early Retirement. If any other county employees or group of employees

within the county is offered an early retirement window, the same offer shall be made to members within this unit.

Section 3. Retiree Health Care Insurance. The Employer will pay the cost of Blue Cross/Blue Shield MVF-1, Hospital Medical, Surgical Insurance with the following riders: FAERC, D.45 NM, ASFP, ML, including Master Medical Program rider option-1 (with prescription drugs) for the retiree only. At age 65, the retiree must enroll in Part B Medicare program. The Employer will thereafter pay the cost of Blue Cross and Blue Shield Master Medical Complementary Coverage Option-1 or its equivalent coverage. The Employer shall also allow the retiree to include in its group coverage the retiree's spouse in accordance with the following provisions:

The Employer shall pre-fund the retiree health care program by establishing a separate fund called the "Retiree Health Care Fund" that will be used for the purpose of paying retiree health care premiums. The Employer shall annually budget sufficient funds to contribute to the "Retiree Health Care Fund," based upon the actuarially determined amount to be reserved for the future cost of retiree health care premiums. One percent (1%) of each employee's biweekly base pay shall be deducted from each employee's pay for deposit into the "Retiree Health Care Fund" to assist in the funding of future health care benefits for the retiree and their spouse. If the employee quits or leaves employment with the Employer for any reason prior to becoming eligible for retirement benefits and/or retiree health care benefits, the employee shall be refunded the amount the employee has contributed to the "Retiree Health Care Fund," along with accumulated interest thereon as determined by the Employer.

A retiree's spouse who is covered by health care benefits from the spouses' employer shall not be allowed to participate in the Employer sponsored retiree health care program.

A retiree and spouse shall be allowed to participate in the retiree health care plan benefit, provided they meet the following requirements:

- (a) The recipient must be an active retiree of the Employer and must be receiving monthly retirement benefits pursuant to the Midland County Retirement System.
- (b) Beneficiaries of retirees shall be allowed to continue to receive health care benefits as long as the named beneficiary is covered by the retiree's health care plan at the time of the retiree's death and continues to receive the deceased retiree's retirement allowance. If a deceased retiree's spouse remarries, health care benefits shall not be available to the new spouse.
- (c) Dependent children of the retiree are eligible for continued health care coverage after the retiree's death, provided the dependent children were enrolled in the retiree's health care plan at the time of the retiree's death and continue as dependents under the surviving spouse who is the named beneficiary of the retiree who is receiving the deceased retiree's retirement allowance. In the event a dependent child is the named beneficiary and continues to receive the

deceased retiree's retirement allowance, and is also enrolled in the retiree's health care plan at the time of the retiree's death, the dependent child shall continue to receive health care coverage through the end of the year in which the dependent child reaches age 19, or age 25 if they are enrolled in a University.

(d) An employee who is eligible for retirement, regardless of age or years of service, shall be entitled to retiree health care benefits for the employee and their spouse. The Employer shall pay 100% of the health care premiums for the retiree and 50% of the premium for retiree spouses and eligible sponsored dependents and the employee shall pay 50% of the difference. The Employer shall pay an additional 5% of the retiree spouses and eligible sponsored dependent's health care premiums for each year of service in excess of ten (10) years of service for retiree health care.

# ARTICLE XXII PAID ANNUAL LEAVE DAYS

Section 1. All full-time non-shift employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to annual paid leave days in one-hour increments or greater, not to exceed eighteen (18) occasions at their base pay rate by step and grade on the basis of the following schedule:

# Employees Hired On Or Before November 15, 1993

Leave Entitlement
22 working days
26 working days
29 working days
30 working days

### Employees Hired On Or After November 16, 1993

After 1 year	12 working days
After 5 years	16 working days
After 10 years	19 working days
After 15 years	20 working days
01/01/2000 - 1 addi	tional day at each step

01/01/2000 - 1 additional day at each step 01/01/2001 - 1 additional day at each step 01/01/2002 - 1 additional day at each step Section 2. Regular part-time employees shall be entitled to prorated annual paid leave days at their base pay rate by step and grade based upon their normal work schedule. For purposes of computing a part-time employee's prorated paid leave entitlements, eight (8) hours worked shall constitute one (1) work day and 2,080 hours worked at straight time shall constitute one (1) year of service.

Section 3. Employees may carry over a maximum of ten (10) days from one fiscal year to the next.

Section 4. Any employee requesting four (4) days or more in a given week shall have priority over any employee who has previously received approval by the Employer for less than four (4) days off in that workweek. The use and scheduling of leave days is subject to the prior approval of the Employer. The procedure for scheduling leave days shall be as follows: The employee shall submit a written request not less than ten (10) days prior to commencement of the leave. (Leaves may be scheduled on shorter notice only with the express approval of the Employer.) The request shall be in writing and give the beginning and ending dates of such requested leave. The Employer shall grant or deny such request, in writing, within five (5) days of receipt of such request. Use of more than twenty (20) consecutive days or bank time takes express approval of the Employer.

Section 5. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employer may permit employees to use annual leave days for the employee's illness or injury, the illness or injury of a family member of the employee, or a personal emergency, upon appropriate notification to the employee's supervisor. Excessive use of annual leave for these purposes shall be subject to such rules and regulations as the Employer may desire to establish for certification of the employee's illness or injury, or subject the employee to disciplinary action as the Employer may deem appropriate in the circumstances.

Section 6. When an employee voluntarily quits with two (2) weeks' notice, he shall be paid for all unused annual leave time (excluding all banked sick leave time which shall be forfeited).

Section 7. In the event of death or retirement of an employee, the employee or his/her estate shall be paid for all unused annual leave time (excluding all banked sick leave time which shall be forfeited).

Section 8. Employees may cash banked leave time during periods of layoff in ten (10) day or less blocks every two (2) weeks by written request to the Employer.

Section 9. First year employees shall be eligible to use earned annual leave after three (3) months of service.

# ARTICLE XXIII UNPAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

Section 1. An employee is eligible for a leave of absence under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) if he has been employed for at least twelve (12) months and works at least 1250 hours during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the employee's request for leave or the date on which the leave commences, whichever comes first.

Section 2. Upon request, an eligible employee will be granted up to twelve (12) workweeks of unpaid FMLA leave during any twelve (12) month period for one or more of the following events:

- (a) for the birth of a son or daughter of the employee and to care for such child.
- (b) for the placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care.
- (c) to care for a spouse, child, or parent of the employee if the former has a serious health condition, or
- (d) because of a serious health condition of the employee which renders him unable to perform the functions of his position.

Section 3. The taking of a FMLA leave shall not result in the loss of any employment benefit accrued prior to the date on which the leave commenced; provided, however, that nothing in this sentence shall be construed to entitle any employee who returns from leave to the accrual of any employment benefit during the period of the leave, or to any other right, benefit, or position other than that to which the employee would have been entitled had the employee not taken the leave. Seniority shall accrue during an FMLA leave.

Section 4. Employees who take a FMLA leave for the intended purpose of the leave shall be entitled, on return from the leave, to be restored to the position of employment held by the employee when the leave commenced or an equivalent position with equivalent employment benefits, pay, and other terms and conditions of employment.

Section 5. The Employer shall maintain coverage under any group health plan as defined by the FMLA for a period of up to, but in no event exceeding, twelve (12) weeks and at the level and under the conditions coverage would have been provided if the employee had continued in employment for the duration of the leave. The Employer shall have the right to recover the premiums paid for maintaining coverage for the employee under such group health plan during the period of a FMLA leave if the employee fails to return to work for reasons other than the continuation, recovery, or onset of a serious health condition entitling the employees to leave under Section 2(c) or 2(d) above, or other circumstances beyond the employee's control. In this situation, the Employer may require certification of inability to return to work as specified and

allowed by the FMLA. If an employee's leave under Section 2(d) above is extended beyond twelve (12) weeks, the employee shall pay the full cost of maintaining coverage under any group health plan for the period of such extended leave.

Section 6. If the requested leave is for the birth/care of a child, the placement of a child for adoption or foster care, or to care for a spouse, child or parent who has a serious health condition, or because of a serious health condition of an employee which renders him unable to perform the functions of his position, the employee is first required to exhaust all accrued paid time off. Upon exhaustion of all but ten (10) days paid leave, any portion of the remaining twelve (12) workweeks of leave shall be unpaid.

Section 7. An unpaid family leave of up to twelve (12) workweeks for the birth/care of a child or for the placement of a child for adoption or foster care may be taken at any time within the twelve (12) month period which starts on the date of such birth or placement of adoption or foster care. However, regardless of when the leave commences, it will expire no later than the end of the twelve (12) month period. For example, an employee who requests a leave at the start of the twelfth (12) month following the date of birth or placement is entitled to only four (4) workweeks of unpaid leave.

Section 8. Spouses, both of whom are employed by the Employer, are limited to a combined total of twelve (12) workweeks of unpaid leave during any twelve (12) month period for the birth/care of their child, placement of their child for adoption or foster care, or for the care of a parent with a serious health condition. However, each employee may use up to twelve (12) workweeks of unpaid leave during any twelve (12) month period to care of his child or spouse who is suffering from a serious health condition.

Section 9. An eligible employee who foresees that he will require a leave for the birth/care of a child or for the placement of a child for adoption or foster care, must notify the Employer, in writing, not less than thirty (30) calendar days in advance of the start date of the leave. If not foreseeable, the employee must provide as much written notice as is practicable under the circumstances.

Section 10. An eligible employee who foresees the need for a leave of absence due to planned medical treatment for his spouse, child or parent, should notify the Employer, in writing, as early as possible so that the absence can be scheduled at a time least disruptive to the Employer's operations. Such employee must also give at least thirty (30) calendar days written notice unless it is impractical to do so, in which case the employee must provide as much written notice as circumstances permit.

Section 11. If the requested leave is to care for a spouse, child or parent who has a serious health condition, the employee may be required to file with the Employer in a timely manner a health care provider's statement that the employee is needed to care for the son, daughter, spouse, or parent and an estimate of the amount of time that the employee is needed for such care.

Section 12. A leave taken under Section 2(a) or 2(b) above shall not be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule unless the Employer and the employee agree otherwise. Subject to the limitations and certifications allowed by the FMLA, a leave taken under Section 2(c) above may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary; provided, however, that where such leave is foreseeable based upon planned medical treatment, the Employer may require the employee to transfer temporarily to an available alternative position offered by the Employer for which the employee is qualified and that has equivalent pay and benefits and better accommodates recurring periods of leave than the employee's regular position.

Section 13. An employee on an approved FMLA leave must keep the Employer informed regarding his status and intent to return to work upon conclusion of the leave.

Section 14. In any case in which the Employer has reason to doubt the validity of the health care provider's statement or certification for leaves taken under Section 2(c) or 2(d), the Employer may, at its expense, require second and third opinions as specified by the FMLA to resolve the issue.

Section 15. The foregoing provisions are intended to comply with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993. To the extent that any are in conflict with the provisions of the Act, the provisions of the Act shall control. Any terms used herein will be as defined in the Act.

# ARTICLE XXIV OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Section 1. Personal Leave Days. All regular full-time seniority employees shall be provided three (3) paid personal days per year, subject to such terms, conditions, restrictions, and limitations applicable to such time off that was in effect as of January 1, 1996. Any such days that are not used by the end of the Employer's fiscal year shall be forfeited.

Section 2. Personal Leave of Absence. Any employee desiring a personal leave of absence from his employment shall secure written permission from the Employer. Leaves of Absence of up to thirty (30) days without pay may be granted subject to the availability of an adequate replacement. Any such requests must be in writing and submitted five (5) work days prior to the date of anticipated absence. Extensions of said leaves may be approved for an additional period of thirty (30) days at the discretion of the Employer. All insurance coverage shall be continued during a personal leave.

Section 3. <u>Union Leave.</u> Members of the Local Union elected to or selected for International Union positions, which take them from their employment with the Employer, shall at the written request of the International Union and approval of the Employer, be granted leaves

of absence without pay, for a period not to exceed one (1) year. Said leave shall be renewable for one (1) additional year.

Members of the Local Union called upon to perform services on behalf of the Union shall be granted leaves of absence of one (1) day to two (2) weeks without pay while on bona fide Union business, subject to the written request of the International Union and approval of the Employer.

Health, dental, optical, and life insurance benefits shall be continued for the first thirty (30) days of a Union leave of absence. The continuation of coverage after said thirty (30) days shall be at the employee's expense.

### Section 4. Military Leave.

An employee on the seniority list inducted into the armed forces of the United States within the meaning of the Selective Service Act of 1967, herein called the Act, or a similar Federal Law in the time of national Emergency, who, within the meaning of the Act, satisfactorily completes his period of service, shall, upon termination of such service and consistent with such Act, be re-employed in line with his seniority, at the then current rate for such work, provided he has not been dishonorably discharged from such service, is physically able, in the opinion of the Employer's physician, to perform the work in the classification from which inducted, and who reports for work within ninety (90) calendar days of the date he is discharged or otherwise separated from such service in the armed forces of the United States; provided further that it is not the intent of the parties hereto to require that the Employer assume any duties or obligations, monetary or otherwise, other than those duties and obligations specifically set forth under applicable federal law.

<u>Section 5</u>. <u>National Guard or Reservist Training</u>. Employees will be granted leaves of absence with pay and benefits for training in the National Guard or Reserves. The employee must remit to the Employer any payment received for performance of this duty. All insurance coverage shall be continued during the period of said leaves.

### Section 6. Bereavement Leave.

(a) When death occurs in an employee's immediate family, i.e., spouse, parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparent, parent or grandparent of a current spouse, child, brother or sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandchild or a permanent member of the employee's family, the employee, on request, will be excused with pay for any of the first (3) normal scheduled working days immediately following the date of death.

Such leave must be taken at the time of the funeral or service, unless prior arrangement is reached with supervision to delay a portion of such leave for activities related to the death. Unrelated uses of this time are not condoned and may be subject to disciplinary action.

- (b) An employee excused from work under this Section shall receive the amount of wages, exclusive of shift or any other premiums, that he would have earned by working during straight time hours on such scheduled days of work for which he was excused.
- (c) In the event of a simultaneous tragedy affecting more than one (1) of the covered relatives enumerated above, not more than three (3) normally scheduled workdays shall be excused with pay, and all such paid days shall be subject to the terms and conditions heretofore stated in this Section.
- (d) In the event of death of an employee's aunt, uncle, nephew, niece, or cousin, one (1) day's paid leave will be allowed subject to the terms and conditions heretofore stated in this Section.
- (e) Other benefits shall continue to accrue and be paid as provided in this Agreement when an employee is on Bereavement Leave.

### Section 7. Jury Duty/Witness Leave.

- (a) Employees shall be granted a leave of absence with pay when they are required to report for jury duty on a regularly scheduled work day.
- (b) Employees shall be paid the difference between their jury duty compensation and their regular wages for time necessarily spent in jury service. Seniority will continue to accrue to the employee while on jury duty. Employees will be paid for the full day after endorsing the jury check to the Employer, less mileage allowance.
- (c) Employees required, whether by the Employer or any other public agency, to appear before a court or such agency on any matters related to their work for the Employer and in which they are personally involved shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for the period during which they are required to be absent from work by reason of said appearance. Such employees shall be paid the difference, if any, between the compensation they receive from the court or agency and their wages for time necessarily spent, not exceeding base pay. Employees will be paid for the full day after turning over witness fees to the Employer, less mileage allowance.
- (d) Employees who are dismissed from court service must report to work for the balance of the day, unless at the time of their dismissal there are less than four (4) hours remaining in the work day.
- (e) Employees working 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. who spend more than four (4) hours in jury duty the morning of their regularly scheduled shift, shall not be required to report that evening. If an employee spends less than four (4) hours in jury duty the morning before their regularly scheduled shift, they shall be required to report that evening.

### Section 8. Procedure for Leaves.

- (a) An employee must submit a letter of application to his Supervisor prior to the start of any leave, except Bereavement Leave, for which advance notice is not required.
- (b) Employees must notify the Supervisor in writing prior to any contemplated change in an approved leave date. Any change in such leave date must be mutually agreed upon.
- (c) Before an unpaid leave of absence is granted, the employee will be required to utilize any accumulated vacation days.

# ARTICLE XXV MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS

Section 1. Mileage. The Employer agrees to pay mileage to all employees who are required to use their personal car for and while on Employer business. The mileage allowance shall be at the rate established by the Midland County Board of Commissioners. This rate shall be effective on the date this contract is signed and applied to the employee's mileage incurred after this date. The Employer may require proof of insurance for employees required to use their personal car on Employer business.

- <u>Section 2.</u> <u>U.S. Savings Bonds Deductions.</u> The Court's designated payroll office shall provide for payroll deduction for the purchase of U.S. Savings Bonds and shall provide the necessary forms.
- Section 3. Contracts. The Employer agrees to supply each member and new hire in the bargaining unit with one (1) copy of this Agreement within sixty (60) days after its execution by both parties or within one (1) week of being hired.
- Section 4. <u>Bulletin Boards</u>. The Employer will furnish and maintain reasonable Union bulletin board space for exclusive use of the Union at locations where employees covered by this Agreement are employed. The board shall be used for the following subjects:
  - (a) Union recreational, social and related news bulletins.
  - (b) Scheduled Union meetings.
  - (c) Information covering union elections or the result thereof.
- (d) Reports of official business of the Union, including reports of committees, local offices or the International.

(e) Any other material which has been approved by the Local Union Chairman.

Section 5. Name, Address, and Telephone Changes. Employees shall notify the Employer of any change of name, address, and telephone number promptly and in any event within five (5) days after such change has been made. The Employer shall be entitled to rely upon an employee's last name, address, and telephone number shown on its records for all purposes involving the employee's employment and this Agreement.

Section 6. Drug and Alcohol Testing. In those instances where the Employer has reasonable suspicion to believe an employee has ingested or is otherwise under the influence of drugs or alcohol, the Employer may require employees to submit to drug and alcohol testing.

Section 7. No-Smoking. Employees covered by this Agreement shall be prohibited from smoking in facilities and vehicles owned or controlled by the Employer or the Midland County Board of Commissioners. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that employees may smoke in areas designated by the Midland County Board of Commissioners for the period provided for in the Board's labor agreement with Teamsters Local 214 and under such other restrictions, terms and conditions as the Board shall deem appropriate.

Section 8. Breaks. Each employee shall be allowed two (2) fifteen (15) minutes breaks per shift. Breaks do not accumulate if not taken.

# ARTICLE XXVI SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

<u>Section 1.</u> <u>Agreement Binding.</u> Any agreement reached between the Employer and the Union is binding upon the Union, the Employer and all employees in the bargaining unit who are affected by such agreement.

Section 2. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Employer and the Union, and supercedes and cancels all previous agreements, oral or written, or based on an alleged Employer past practice, relating to employees or any one or more of them covered by this Agreement, which were in effect prior to the date this Agreement becomes effective. This Agreement may be supplemented, amended, or modified at any time upon mutual consent of the parties; provided, however, any agreement or agreements which supplement, amend or modify this Agreement shall not be binding or effective for any purpose whatsoever unless reduced to writing and signed by the Employer and the Union.

Section 3. Waiver of Bargaining During Agreement's Term. The Employer and Union acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or

matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of the right and opportunity are contained in this Agreement. Therefore, the Employer and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and agrees that the other shall not be obligated, to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered in this Agreement, or with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered by this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

Section 4. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall at any time be declared invalid or illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, from whose final judgment or decree no appeal has been taken within the time provided for doing so, such provision, and that provision only, shall be void and inoperative. However, all other provisions of this Agreement shall continue in force and effect. Within sixty (60) days of such final date from which an appeal of any judgment or decree voiding a provision of this Agreement may have but was not taken, the parties may, upon mutual consent, meet for the purpose of rewriting the voided and any other directly affected provisions, and those provisions only.

### ARTICLE XXVII DURATION

This Agreement shall be effective June 8, 1999, and shall continue in full force and effect until midnight, December 31, 2002, and shall be automatically renewed thereafter for successive periods of one year unless either party, on or before ninety (90) days prior to its expiration, notifies the other party, in writing, of its desire to terminate, modify, alter, change or renegotiate the Agreement, or any combination thereof. Such proper and timely notification shall have the effect of terminating the entire Agreement on its expiration date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have, by their authorized representatives, affixed their signature to this Agreement at Midland, Michigan, this 8thday of June , 19 99. MIDLAND COUNTY PROBATE COURT/ UNITED STEELWORKERS OF 42<sup>ND</sup> CIRCUIT COURT-FAMILY AMERICA, AFL-CIO-CLC DIVISION Donna T. Morris, Probate Court/42nd George F. Becker, Circuit Court-Family Division Judge International President Ralph É. Flatt, Leo W. Gerard, Family Division Director International Treasurer Rhonda A. Westphal, Richard H. Dávis, Midland County Juvenile Care International Vice President Center Director Betty L. Fillmore, Chairman Leon Lynch, Midland County Board of Commissioners International Vice President Harry E. Lester, Bridgette M. Gransden, District Director Finance Director Miles M. Cameron, Richard J. Busch **Sub-District Director** Personnel Director LOCAL 12075 (NON-SUPERVISORY UNIT) David Koch, Unit Chairperson Deborah R. Hawk Committee

Roberta Peless, Committee

# APPENDIX A

Classification	Grade
Cook	1
Maintenance	4
Deputy Probate Register/Judicial Clerk	4
Secretary/Senior Secretary	4
Senior Secretary/Deputy Probate Register	4
Financial Officer	5
Juvenile Register/Recorder	5 (to be computed)
Foster Home Coordinator	6 (to be computed)
Youth Development Workers	6
Probate Register/Recorder	7
Family/Community Service Workers	8
Juvenile Probation Officers	8

. . .

Management agrees to use the Hay System to evaluate the Juvenile Register/Recorder and Foster Home Coordinator. This shall be done no later than one month after the final agreement. Final pay, if any, shall be retroactive to December 31, 1998.

## APPENDIX B

# PROBATE COURT/42ND CIRCUIT CT - FAMILY DIVISION 1999 SALARY TABLE 0.00%

(EMPLOYEES HIRED PRIOR TO 9/24/96)

## EFFECTIVE 1/1/99

PAY	START	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E
GRADE		1 YEAR	2 YEARS	3 YEARS	<b>5 YEARS</b>	7 YEARS
1	\$17,665	18,549	19,476	20,430	21,956	23,532
2	19,079	20,032	21,034	22,066	23,672	25,331
3	20,604	21,635	22,717	23,830	25,523	27,274
4	22,253	23,366	24,535	25,738	27,523	29,371
5	24,033	25,236	26,498	27,796	29,683	31,636
6	25,957	27,254	28,616	30,019	32,015	34,083
7	28,033	29,435	30,907	32,421	34,534	36,725
8	30,276	31,789	33,378	35,015	37,255	39,580
9	32,697	34,332	36,048	37,815	40,194	42,662

# PROBATE COURT/42ND CIRCUIT CT - FAMILY DIVISION 2000 SALARY TABLE 3.00% (EMPLOYEES HIRED PRIOR TO 9/24/96)

PAY GRADE	START	STEP A 1 YEAR	STEP B 2 YEARS	STEP C 3 YEARS	STEP D 5 YEARS	STEP E 7 YEARS
1	\$18,195	19,105	20,060	21,043	22,615	24,238
2	19,651	20,633	21,665	22,728	24,382	26,091
3	21,222	22,284	23,399	24,545	26,289	28,092
4	22,921	24,067	25,271	26,510	28,349	30,252
5	24,754	25,993	27,293	28,630	30,573	32,585
6	26,736	28,072	29,474	30,920	32,975	35,105
7	28,874	30,318	31,834	33,394	35,570	37,827
8	31,184	32,743	34,379	36,065	38,373	40,767
9	33,678	35,362	37,129	38,949	41,400	43,942

# PROBATE COURT/42ND CIRCUIT CT - FAMILY DIVISION 2001 SALARY TABLE 3.00%

(EMPLOYEES HIRED PRIOR TO 9/24/96)

# EFFECTIVE 1/1/01

PAY	START	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E
GRADE		1 YEAR	2 YEARS	3 YEARS	<b>5 YEARS</b>	7 YEARS
1	\$18,741	19,679	20,662	21,674	23,293	24,965
2	20,241	21,252	22,315	23,410	25,114	26,874
3	21,859	22,953	24,100	25,281	27,077	28,935
4	23,608	24,789	26,029	27,305	29,199	31,160
5	25,497	26,773	28,112	29,489	31,491	33,563
6	27,538	28,914	30,359	31,847	33,965	36,159
7	29,740	31,228	32,789	34,395	36,637	38,962
8	32,120	33,725	35,411	37,147	39,524	41,990
9	34,688	36,423	38,243	40,118	42,642	45,260

# PROBATE COURT/42ND CIRCUIT CT - FAMILY DIVISION 2002 SALARY TABLE 3.00% (EMPLOYEES HIRED PRIOR TO 9/24/96)

PAY	START	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E
GRADE		1 YEAR	2 YEARS	3 YEARS	<b>5 YEARS</b>	7 YEARS
1	\$19,303	20,269	21,282	22,324	23,992	25,714
2	20,848	21,890	22,984	24,112	25,867	27,680
3	22,515	23,641	24,823	26,040	27,890	29,803
4	24,316	25,533	26,810	28,125	30,075	32,094
5	26,262	27,576	28,955	30,373	32,435	34,570
6	28,364	29,781	31,269	32,803	34,984	37,243
7	30,632	32,164	33,773	35,427	37,736	40,130
8	33,083	34,737	36,473	38,262	40,710	43,250
9	35,729	37,516	39,391	41,321	43,921	46,618

# PROBATE COURT/42ND CIRCUIT CT - FAMILY DIVISION 1999 SALARY TABLE 0.00% (EMPLOYEES HIRED AFTER 9/24/96)

# **EFFECTIVE 1/1/99**

STEP J 10 YEARS	3,532	5,331	7.274	9,371	1,636	4,083	5,726	9,580	2,662
STEP I 9 YEARS	22,061	23,826	25,732	27,791	30,014	32,417	35,010	37,810	40,835
STEP H S	21,524	23,246	25,105	27,114	29,283	31,626	34,156	36,887	39,839
STEP G 7 YEARS	20,999	22,678	24,492	26,453	28,569	30,854	33,322	35,989	38,867
STEP F 6 YEARS	20,487	22,126	23,894	25,808	27,781	30,101	32,509	35,109	37,919
STEP E 5	19,987	21,585	23,312	25,178	27,191	29,367	31,718	34,254	36,993
TEP D	19,499	21,059	22,743	24,564	26,528	28,651	30,943	33,418	36,091
STEP C S	19,024	20,546	22,189	23,965	25,881	27,952	30,189	32,603	35,211
8 2	18,560								
STEP A 1 YEAR	18,107	19,555	21,120	22,809	24,634	26,606	28,733	31,032	33,515
START	\$17,665	19,079	20,604	22,253	24,033	25,957	28,033	30,275	32,697
PAY GRADE	-	2	က	4	2	9	7	æ	6

# PROBATE COURT/42ND CIRCUIT CT - FAMILY DIVISION 2000 SALARY TABLE 3.00% (EMPLOYEES HIRED AFTER 9/24/96)

STEP J									
STEP I 9 YEARS	22.723	24,541	26,504	28,625	30,914	33,390	36,060	38 944	42,060
STEP H S									
STEP G 7 YEARS	21,629	23,358	25,227	27,247	29,426	31,780	34.322	37,069	40,033
STEP F 6 YEARS									
STEP E 5 YEARS									
STEP D 4 YEARS									
STEP C 3 YEARS									
STEP B 2 YEARS 3	19,117	20,645	22,296	24,081	26,008	28,089	30,336	32,762	35,383
STEP A 1 YEAR	18,650	20,142	21,754	23,493	25,373	27,404	29,595	31,963	34,520
START	\$18,195	19,651	21,222	22,921	24,754	26,736	28,874	31,183	33,678
PAY GRADE	-	2	က	4	2	9	7	8	6

# PROBATE COURT/42ND CIRCUIT CT - FAMILY DIVISION 2001 SALARY TABLE 3.00% (EMPLOYEES HIRED AFTER 9/24/96)

# **EFFECTIVE 1/1/01**

STEP J 10 YEARS	1.965	3.874	3.935	160	3.563	3.159	3,963	066	5,260
٠, ١									
STEP I 9 YEARS									
STEP H 8	22,835	24,662	26,634	28,765	31,066	33,552	36,236	39,133	42,265
STEP G 7 YEARS	22,278	24,059	25,984	28,064	30,309	32,733	35,351	38,181	41,234
STEP F 6 YEARS	21,735	23,473	25,349	27,380	29,473	31,934	34,489	37,247	40,228
STEP E 5 YEARS									
STEP D 4 YEARS	20,686	22,341	24,128	26,060	28,144	30,396	32,827	35,453	38,289
STEP C 3 YEARS	20,183	21,797	23,540	25,424	27,457	29,654	32,028	34,589	37,355
STEP B 2 YEARS	19,690	21,265	22,965	24,804	26,788	28,932	31,246	33,745	36,444
STEP A 1 YEAR	19,210	20,746	22,406	24,198	26,134	28,226	30,483	32,922	35,556
START	\$18,741	20,241	21,859	23,608	25,497	27,538	29,740	32,119	34,688
PAY GRADE	-	2	က	4	2	9	7	89	6

# PROBATE COURT/42ND CIRCUIT CT - FAMILY DIVISION 2002 SALARY TABLE 3.00% (EMPLOYEES HIRED AFTER 9/24/96)

STEP J									46,618
STEP I	24 107	26,035	28 118	30,368	30,000	35 703	38,956	41 216	44,622
STEP H S	23.520	25,402	27,433	29 628	31 998	34 559	37,333	40.307	43,533
STEP G S	22.946	24,781	26.763	28,906	31 218	33 715	36,412	30,326	42,471
STEP F 6 YEARS	22,387	24,178	26,110	28.201	30,357	32 892	35,523	38,365	41,435
STEP E 5 YEARS	21,840	23,587	25,474	27,513	29,712	32,090	34,659	37,430	40,423
STEP D S 4 YEARS 5	21,307	23,012	24,852	26,842	28,988	31,308	33,812	36.517	39,438
STEP C 3 YEARS	20,788	22,451	24,247	26,187	28,281	30,544	32,988	35,626	38,476
STEP B 2 YEARS	20,281	21,903	23,654	25,548	27,591	29,800	32,183	34,757	37,537
STEP A 1 YEAR	19,786	21,368	23,078	24,924	26,918	29,073	31,397	33,910	36,623
START	\$19,303	20,848	22,515	24,316	26,262	28,364	30,632	33,082	35,729
PAY GRADE	-	2	က	4	2	9	7	80	6